OREGON

Cascades West

Council of Governments

Board of Directors
Meeting Packet

December 4, 2025
2:00 pm - 4:00 pm

Attend In Person at

Albany Cascades West Center
1400 Queen Ave SE, Albany, OR 97322

Or Attend Virtually:

Click to Join Teams Meeting

OCWCOG strives to host inclusive, accessible events that enable all individuals,
including individuals with disabilities, to engage fully. To request an accommodation
or for inquiries about accessibility please contact Oregon Cascades West Council of

Governments at 541-936-9006 or adminGA@ocwcog.org, forty-eight (48) hours

prior to the meeting.

1


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d

adii

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

1400 Queen Ave SE - Suite 201 « Albany, OR 97322
(541) 967-8720 - FAX (541) 967-6123

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA
December 4, 2025
2:00 - 4:00 pm

1400 Queen Ave SE Albany, OR 97322

Join Teams Meeting

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.

NOTE: Please contact Angelykah Light at 541.405.8420 or alight@ocwcog.org no later than
noon on Wednesday, December 3, 2025, to confirm your attendance.

. Welcome and Introductions (Chair Pat Malone)
(2:00 pm — 2:05 pm)

. Public Comment (Chair Pat Malone)
(2:05 pm — 2:10 pm)

The floor will be open to the public for comment.

. Consent Calendar (Chair Pat Malone)
(2:10 pm - 2:15 pm)

. Approve meeting minutes from October 23, 2025 (Page 5)
Financial Report YTD October 2025 (Page 10)

ACTION: Motion to approve Consent Calendar items.


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmU0YzRkMjEtODAyMS00ZWEyLWIzZjgtNGE3NmJiOTA4M2U2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b12a7d09-4842-4d79-ab2b-cde0828bc369%22%7d
mailto:alight@ocwcog.org

4. 2026 Meeting Calendar (Executive Director Ryan Vogt)
(2:15 pm — 2:30 pm)

2026 Proposed Meeting Calendar (Page 12)

ACTION: Motion to approve the 2026 meeting calendar.

5. Benton County At Large Member (Executive Director Ryan Vogt)
(2:30 pm — 2:35 pm)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

6. New Member Appointment Loan Program Advisory Committee (CED Director Matt
Lehman)
(2:35 pm — 2:40 pm)

New Membership Appointment Memo (Page 13)

ACTION: Motion to approve LPAC membership appointment of Sarah
Buddingh.

7. Program Highlight Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) (CED
Planner Justin Peterson)
(2:40 pm — 3:00 pm)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

8. Newport & Regional Implications (Mayor Jan Kaplin, Newport)
(3:00 pm — 3:20 pm)

OCWCOG Regional Response Proposal Document (Page 14)

Proposed Local Response Draft Document (Page 15)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.



9. OCWCOG Program Updates
(3:20 pm — 3:25 pm)

Senior, Disability, and Community Services Program Director Randi Moore (Page 17)
Community and Economic Development Director Matthew Lehman(Page 22)

Chief Information Officer Jason Sele (Page 26)

Human Resources Director Ryan Schulze (Page 27)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

10. Subcommittee Reports
(3:25 pm — 3:30 pm)

Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) (Page 28)

Transportation Brokerage Advisory Committee (TBAC) (Page 30)

Disability Services Advisory Council (DSAC) & Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC) no
update

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.

11. Agency Director Update (Agency Director Paul Egbert)
(3:30 pm — 3:45 pm)

ACTION: Information only, no action needed.
12. Executive Director Update (Executive Director Ryan Vogt)
(3:45 pm — 3:55 pm)
ACTION: Information only, no action needed.
13. Other Business

(3:55 pm — 4:00 pm)

14. Adjournment
(4:00 pm)



- ‘ ‘ VISION To prom.oFe a thr|Y|ng reglon through service,
connectivity, and innovation.

Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES

October 23, 2025
9:30 —11:30 pm

An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.

Attendees: Chair Commissioner Pat Malone, Benton County; Treasurer
Commissioner Sherrie Sprenger, Linn County; Mayor Alex Johnson Il, Albany; Mayor
Jan Kaplin, Newport; Mayor Rod Cross, Toledo; Mayor Christopher McMorran,
Philomath; Councilor Debbie Poland, Depoe Bay; Councilor Mike Caughey, Harrisburg;
and Councilor Rick Booth, Waldport.

Absent: Vice Chair Commissioner Claire Hall, Lincoln County; Mayor Charles
Maughn, Corvallis; Mayor Scott Cowan, Millersburg; Mayor Loel Trulove, Tangent;
Councilor Kevin Hohnbaum, Lincoln City; Councilor Ken Bronson, Sweet Home;
Councilor Jeanni Cuthbertson, Monroe; Councilor Joseph Parsons, Sodaville;
Commissioner Gil Sylvia, Port of Newport; and Member Robert Kenta, Confederated
Tribe of Siletz Indians.

Staff: Executive Director Ryan Vogt, Agency Director Paul Egbert; Finance
Director Marit Nelson; Chief Information Officer (CIO) Jason Sele; Human Resources
(HR) Director Ryan Schulze; Senior and Disability Services (SDS) Director Randi
Moore, Planning and Transportation Program Manager Matt Lehman; Ride Line
Program Manager Jesus Jara, Operations Supervisor Emma Chaves-Sosa, Loan
Officer Didi Aho; Organizational Development and Training Specialist Vanessa Rusch;
Communications Officer Karla Brouhard, SEIU 503 Union Representative Mandi Craig,
Executive Assistant Celina Franklin and Executive Assistant Angelykah Light.

Public: None

Welcome and Introductions
The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) Board of Directors
Meeting was called to order by Chair Malone on October 23, 2025, at 9:36 am Via




Teams Video and Audio Conferencing, and in-person attendees. Introductions were
completed by the attendees.

Public Comment
No Comments from the Public.

Consent Calendar

Mayor Cross moved to approve the Consent Calendar including the Board of Directors
July 17, 2025, meeting minutes, and the Board of Directors September 18, 2025,
Meeting Minutes. Treasurer Sprenger seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Treasurer
Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor Kaplin, Mayor Cross, Mayor McMorran, Councilor
Poland, Councilor Caughey, and Councilor Booth all voted in favor. With no opposition,
the motion was approved.

Bylaws Updates to Reflect CWACT Changes

Executive Director Vogt states the CWACT was historically a body of work overseen
by OCWCOG. CWACT work will now be overseen by Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) staff due to changes in funding.

Mayor Cross moved to approve the proposed changes to the Bylaws as reflected in
the draft document. Treasurer Sprenger seconded the motion.

Chair Malone allowed for discussion.
Mayor McMorran asked if ODOT overseeing the CWACT is a permanent change.

Chair Malone stated he has not heard any indication of the change being permanent
or temporary.

Mayor Cross stated he is on the Continuous Improvement Advisory Committee and
described a variety of changes that he has experienced with ODOT.

Executive Director Vogt stated the purpose of the motion request is to remove CWACT
from the OCWCOG Bylaws as a subcommittee of the OCWCOG Board of Directors
expressed in the Bylaws.

Chair Malone asked for all in favor of the motion stated by Mayor cross. Chair Malone,
Treasurer Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor Kaplin, Mayor Cross, Mayor McMorran,
Councilor Poland, Councilor Caughey, and Councilor Booth all voted in favor. With no
opposition, the motion was approved.



Cascades West Business Lending (CWBL) Resolution

Loan Officer Aho presented the resolution for the Economic Development
Administration (EDA) funding presented in 2021. This loan requires annual or
semiannual reporting. In the past, OCWCOG has provided Loan Program Advisory
Committee (LPAC) meeting notes as the annual reporting documents. Going forward,
EDA Resolutions will be provided to the OCWCOG Board of Directors annually.

Mayor Cross moved to approve the CWBL Resolution. Treasurer Sprenger seconded
the motion. Chair Malone, Treasurer Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor Kaplin, Mayor
Cross, Mayor McMorran, Councilor Poland, Councilor Caughey, and Councilor Booth
all voted in favor. With no opposition, the motion was approved.

Approval of the Collective Bargaining Agreement

HR Director Schulze provided summary of the changes in the new bargaining
agreement. Changes include updates to layoffs or furlough language and procedure.
HR Director Schulze stated there are updates to the procedure in the event of a
catastrophic event resulting in OCWCOG office closures for an extended amount of
time. Changes have been made to the rate of vacation accruals, vacation cash outs,
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA), a one-time payment of $550 Friday prior to the
Thanksgiving Holiday, and the Bargaining Agreement will now cover three years
instead of the historic cadence of two years.

Mayor Cross moved to approve the changes and implement the new collective
bargaining agreement. Treasurer Sprenger seconded the motion. Chair Malone,
Treasurer Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor Kaplin, Mayor Cross, Mayor McMorran,
Councilor Poland, Councilor Caughey, and Councilor Booth all voted in favor. With no
opposition, the motion was approved.

Sub local Officer 937, Mandi Craig thanked Paul Egbert, Ryan Schulze, Marit Nelson,
Alicia Lucke, and Ashley Bogue Brown on behalf of the other Union Representatives
for their collaborative efforts while bargaining.

Management Compensation Package
Executive Director Vogt requested the management compensation package reflect the
newly approved bargaining agreement for represented staff.

Mayor Cross moved to approve the changes and implement the management
compensation package. Treasurer Sprenger seconded the motion. Chair Malone,
Treasurer Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor Kaplin, Mayor Cross, Mayor McMorran,
Councilor Poland, Councilor Caughey, and Councilor Booth all voted in favor. With no
opposition, the motion was approved.



New Logo
Communications Officer Brouhard presented the new logo proposed for OCWCOG.

The proposal is to request review and move to approve the new logo for use going
forward.

Treasurer Sprenger asked what the cost implications will be for updating materials with
the new image.

Finance Director Nelson stated current materials will be used first and replaced with
the new logo as needed.

Treasurer Sprenger asked for clarification on the roll out timeline and the cost of items
such as signs, and tablecloths.

Executive Director Vogt stated items such as lanyards and tee shirts will be distributed
to staff and events like the All Staff. Additional items such as the sign for the building
will be aligned with the flexible budget. The Board of Directors will not be requested to
approve special funding. If additional funds are needed, they will be outlined in the next
budget cycle.

Communications Officer Brouhard explained the variety of uses the new logo will have
and how each might be used.

Chair Malone stated the logo is attractive and expressed agreement with the update.

Communications Officer Brouhard stated the change will assist with leaning into the
identifier of the agency as Cascades West. There has also been development of a new
brand guideline that will be available internally and externally.

Treasurer Sprenger moved to approve the adoption of the new logo. Mayor Cross
seconded the motion. Chair Malone, Treasurer Sprenger, Mayor Johnson, Mayor
Kaplin, Mayor Cross, Mayor McMorran, Councilor Poland, Councilor Caughey, and
Councilor Booth all voted in favor. With no opposition, the motion was approved.

Executive Director Update

Executive Director Vogt states the Fiscal position in the agency remains stable and is
not of immediate concern in the face of the Federal Shutdown. OCWCOG is preparing
internally for the full stoppage for the delay of Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP) benefits. Preparations include cataloging alternative food resources,
staff driven food collection and increased access to educational materials. OCWCOG is
also preparing for an increase in consumers that may become emotionally elevated with
additional manager level support for reception staff.




Mayor Cross asked if Meals on Wheels accepts donations and where the money needs
to be directed too.

SDS Director Moore stated donations can come in a variety of ways including a link on
the OCWCOG website, or in person at any of the OCWCOG offices. Donations can
even be made to specific meal sites.

Executive Director Vogt stated he had attended a variety of conferences held by the
National Association of Regional Councils (NARC). The meeting assists in allowing
Executives to speak on a variety of agency successes and learning opportunities.

Agency Director Egbert stated he was also able to attend the conference and was given
inspiration for internal and external priorities. Agency Director will be increasing
partnership conversations and increasing community exposure. Interviews for the
Community and Economic Development (CED) Director position have been completed,
more updates to come. OCWCOG Senior Leadership will soon be spending time in
Benton County to refresh the Strategic Priorities.

Executive Director Vogt stated there have been some additional intentional efforts to
celebrate staff including a recent luncheon event for staff who have met specific
milestones. Executive Director Vogt states he wishes to continue finding ways to
celebrate and thank the staff for the work they do and their impact on the region.

Other Business
Chair Malone took some time to express the importance of quorum. The next meeting
will be held on December 4t at 2 pm in the Albany OCWCOG conference room.

Adjournment

Chair Malone adjourned the meeting at 10:59 am.

Meeting minutes taken by Angelykah Light.



Quarterly Actualsv AnnualBudget
Total Department
Total Fund
Generatedn: November24, 20253:45PM

Council of
Governments

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Adopted
Budaet
al Jul Aug Sep [} Oct Nov YearTotal YearTotal Balance Thru10/31 _FYETrend
Net Incomel(Loss) 2,023,435 195,076 1,133,173 -695,187 2,141,122 815,515 2,956,637 117,686 13,562,741 13,445,055 33%
Total Revenues 10,186,248 3,352,433 3,066,373 3,767,442 7,173,197 3,557,182 3,616,015 17,359,445 76,971,637 59,612,192 28% 71722992 17,079,837
Revenues 10,186,248 3,352,433 3,066,373 3,767,442 7,173,197 3,557,182 3,616,015 17,359,445 76,322,737 58,963,292 23%
40000 - Beginning Balance - - - - - - - 25,000,000 24,833,642 24,833,642 25,000,000
Total 42000 - Fees & Dues 2,314,324 1,007,241 672,246 634,837 607,148 501,332 105,816 2,921,472 7,476,710 4,555,237 30%
42000 - Fees & Dues - - - - - - - - 4,338 4,338
42100 - Dues 391,816 391,816 - - - - - 391,816 391,816 0 100% 391,816
4220y - rogram revenue 844,999 256,519 313,023 275,456 248,136 142,321 105,816 1,003,135 2,742,765 1,649,630 40% 3,279,405
42500 - Intemal service charges 1,077,510 358,906 359,223 359,381 359,012 350,012 - 1,436,522 4,337,791 2,901,269 33% 4,300,566
Total 43000 - Intergovernmental 7,518,522 2,228,796 2,285,845 3,003,880 6,142,073 2,672,746 3,470,228 13,661,495 42,326,545 28,665,050 32%
43000 - Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - 1,779,960 1,779,960
43100 - Contracts 3,117,454 1,013,273 1,007,317 1,096,864 2,164,549 1,032,520 1,132,029 5,282,002 14,050,600 8,768,508 8% 14,085,339
43200 - FedDir 128,280 - - 128,280 - - - 128,280 753,970 625,690 179% 513,120
43300 - Fedind - - - - - - - - 808,740 808,740
43400 - State 3,691,956 1,141,083 1,113,604 1,437,269 3,619,856 1,312,379 2307477 7,311,812 23,220,240 15,917,428 3% 19,498,165
43500 - Local 580,832 74,441 164,923 341,468 358,568 327,847 30,721 939,400 1,704,035 764,635 55% 2254560
44100 - Rents 32,906 14,234 9,244 9,428 14,234 9,428 4,806 47,139 114,537 67,398 4% 125,704
Total 46000 - Interest & Misc & Donations 320,497 102,162 99,038 119,207 408,842 373,676 35,166 729,339 1,571,303 841,964 46%
46100 - Interest Revenue 213,004 74,191 73,987 64,917 50,452 59,452 - 272,546 614,659 342,113 44% 817,638
#o11u - Lenaing Frogram Interest 31114 10,929 9,811 10,374 20,099 10,268 9,831 51213 122417 71,204 42% 122,911
46200 - Donations - - - - - - - - 300 300 -
o210 - Lonations Recelvea: 40,747 12,266 14,841 13,640 329,201 303,956 25,335 370,038 143,500 -226,538 258% 550,114
o2y - onations Recelvea: 5,000 - - 5,000 - - - 5,000 7,000 2,000 71% 10,000
46700 - Matching Contributions 24,131 - - 24,131 - - - 24,131 680,936 656,805 4% 96,524
46900 - Misc Revenue 6410 4776 400 1,234 - - - 6410 2,491 3,919 257% 19,230
Other Income - - - - - - - - 648,900 648,900
Total 48000 - Transfers In - - - - - - - - 648,900 648,900
48000 - Transfers In - - - - - - - - 648,900 648,900 648,900
Total Expenses. 12,209,684 -3,547,509 4,199,546 4,462,629 5,032,075 4,372,697 650378 17,241,759 63,408,896 46,167,137 2%
Expense 12,157,333 3,545,134 4,155,609 4,456,590 5,026,208 4,369,292 656,915 17,183,541 61,794,761 44,611,220 28%  54,643.155
Personnel 6,205,475 1,895,079 2,141,117 2,259,279 2,033,565 2,030,543 3,022 8,320,040 32,906,557 24,577,517 25%
51000 - Wages 3,750,465 1,176,364 1,320,657 1,253,445 1,245,626 1,242,604 3022 4,996,002 19,407,015 14,410,923 2%  16.187.338
52000 - Benefits 2,545,010 718,716 820,460 1,005,834 787,939 787,939 - 3,332,948 13,499,543 10,166,504 25%  10498.786
Supplies & Services 5,797,341 1,638,326 2,005,933 2,153,082 2,975,991 2,322,801 653,191 8,773,332 28,541,219 19,767,887 31%
Total 61100 - Supplies 46,214 6,236 17,465 22512 26,087 17,601 8,486 72,300 180,200 107,900 40%
61100 - Supplies 44,393 5411 16,913 22,068 22,191 17,250 4,941 66,584 135,200 68,616 49% 199,752
o120 - Supplles: volnteer 1,768 793 552 423 3,813 324 3,489 5,581 30,000 24,419 19% 16.743
61250 - Supplies: Food MOW 52 32 - 20 83 27 56 135 15,000 14,865 19 405
Lo ooy Equipment (non- 17,169 a2 1,740 14,958 54,987 7,903 47,084 72,156 175,730 103,574 1% 216,468
o130 - Equipment (non- 17,169 472 1,740 14,958 54,987 7,903 47,084 72,156 175,730 103,574 1% 216.468
61400 - Fumiture 11,362 - 5704 5,658 5486 5486 - 16,848 12,700 4,148 133% 50,544
Total 62000 - Services 5,722,597 1,631,617 1,981,025 2,109,955 2,889,281 2,291,660 597,621 8,611,878 28,170,721 19,558,843 31%
62000 - Services - - - - - - - - 231,859 231,859 200,000
62100 - Professional Services 3972733 1,105,424 1,516,496 1,350,814 2,342,626 1,784,914 557,713 6,315,350 15,721,535 9,406,175 40% 18946077
62110 - Legal services 130 - 130 - 388 388 - 518 51,450 50,033 19% 1,554
62120 - Marketing services 9,041 3922 3489 1,630 17123 2,050 15,073 26,164 35,113 8,949 75% 78,492
62130 - Insurance services 20379 17,308 12,071 - - - - 20,379 152,200 122,821 19% 88,137
62140 - Banking services 887 210 337 340 562 562 - 1,449 12,775 11,326 1% 4,347
04150 - Lranis to 323,009 73,009 - 250,000 31,750 31,750 - 354,759 6,476,753 6,121,994 5% 1,064,277
62210 - Printing/copying 25,543 10,188 6904 8,451 4,580 4,433 147 30,123 100,138 79,015 26% 90,369
62220 - Postage 14,132 4,270 5774 4,087 6123 4,619 1,504 20,255 45,096 24,841 45% 60,765
62300 - Software 80,197 3,657 512 76,028 10,583 2,217 8307 90,780 281,520 190,740 2% 272,340
62400 - Telephoneintemnet 11,883 2,322 4,894 4,667 61 61 - 11,823 70,584 58,761 179% 35,460
62500 - Memberships/Dues 5,248 2,676 1,922 650 50,564 58,664 900 64,812 78,200 13,388 83% 194,436
62600 - Travel and training 33,976 16,197 10,500 7,280 8808 3125 5,683 42,785 118,708 75,923 36% 128,355
62610 - Trainers 21,140 - 20610 530 5,638 5,638 - 26,778 22,700 4,078 118% 80,334
62621 - Employee mileage 49,427 14,512 13,651 21,264 19,611 18,321 1,290 69,038 146,400 77,362 47% 207,114
62622 - Company automobile 542 - 503 39 100 50 50 642 6,000 5,358 1% 1,926
62623 - Other employe travel 1,495 0 326 1,170 238 - 238 1,733 - 1,733 5199
62630 - Volunteer travel 12,147 3,385 4471 4,320 4,661 4,151 511 16,808 42,000 25,192 40% 50,424
02040 - Employee travel 721 231 176 314 - - - 721 2,500 1,779 29% 2,163
62650 - Employee lodging 348 - 348 - 1,845 - 1,845 2,193 2,000 193 110% 6.579
62700 - Facility and Utilies 31,287 11,956 9,308 10,022 7,966 7,966 - 39,252 131,792 92,540 30% 117,756
62710 - Rent expense 224,837 72,601 77,201 74,946 77,201 74,946 2345 302,128 884,583 582,455 34% 906,384
02120 - Faciity maintenance 3126 773 879 1,474 1,531 232 1,299 4,657 50,000 45,343 9% 13,971
62721 - Janitorial Service 23,903 9,266 6,805 7.833 8,889 8,701 188 32,792 93,060 60,268 35% 98,376
62731 - Electricity 10,181 910 4,481 4,791 - - - 10,181 50,000 39,819 20% 30,543
62741 - Facilities Permits - - - - 529 - 529 529 - 529 1,587
Sﬁ:?u"es QS;!?.Z?Z‘“ 837,284 278,831 279,148 279,305 278,936 278,936 - 1,116,220 3,354,755 2,238,535 33% 3,348,660
62900 - Miscellaneous Expenses - - - - 150 150 0 150 1,869 1,719 8% 450
Total 64000 - Client Assistance 35,308 11,729 8,559 15,020 16,651 15,949 702 51,959 273,984 222,025 19%
64000 - Client Assistance - - - - - - - - 47,000 47,000 47,000
043U - Lilent Assist: Program 12,620 3818 2,880 5922 5,820 5610 210 18,440 176,984 158,544 10% 55,320
440U - Lilent Assist: Support 22,688 7,911 5,679 9,097 10,832 10,339 492 33,519 50,000 16,481 67% 100,557
67000 - Resource Reserves - - - - - - - - 48,000 48,000 R
70000 - Capital 20,200 - - 29,209 - - - 29,209 25,000 4,209 17% 20,200
Other Expense 52,350 2,375 43,937 6,038 5,868 3,405 2,463 58,218 1,614,135 1,555,917 4%
71000 - Equipment 17,691 2,201 19,982 - - - - 17,691 - 17,691 18,000
74000 - Capital Improvements - - - - - - - - 235,000 235,000 200,000
77000 - Software (multi-year) 34,659 4,666 23,955 6,038 5,868 3,405 2463 40,527 177,248 136,721 23% 121,581
Debt, Transfers & Contingency - - - - - - - - 1,201,887 1,201,887
95000 - Contingency - - - - - - - - 552,087 552,987 R
Total 98000 - Transfers Out - - - - - - - - 648,900 648,900
98000 - Transfers Out - - - - - - - - 648,900 648,900 648,900

10



Quarterly Actualsv AnnualBudget
Total Department
Total Fund
Council of Generatedn: November24,20253:45PM
overnments

Year to Date Total Actuals

- B Toial Revenues
) B Touwl Expenses

Year to Date Actuals to Total Budget
21,000,000
18, (0K, 00H)
15,000,000

17,241,759

12,000,000
W Actal
9,000, 000
6,004,000

3,000,000

0
YearTotal, Total Revenues YearTotal, Total Expenses

1"



2026 OCWCOG MEETING SCHEDULE

BUDGET FINANCE
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
1:00P - 1:30P 1:30P-2:00P
Thursday Thursday
January **15 15
February
March *19 19
April *16
May 21 21
June
July 16
August
September 17
October
November - -
December **3 3

Budget Committee meeting is Thursday's before the Finance Committee meeting.

Finance Committee meeting is Thursday's before the Full Board of Directors meeting.

Board of Director meeting is 3rd Thursday of the month.

Executive Committee meeting is the 4th Thursday of the month.

Loan Program Advisory Committee (LPAC) meeting is Thursday's directly before the Executive Committee meeting.

* Budget Committee work group meetings.

**Budget Committee may call an additional session to cover a Supplemental Budget.

12

LOCATION




- ! . VISION To promlo.te a thrlylng region through service,
connectivity, and innovation.

Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

December 04, 2025

TO: Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) Board of Directors
FROM: Loan Program Advisory Committee Members, and staff
RE: Loan Program Advisory Committee Member Appointments

ACTION: Appointment of a Community Economic Development Member

BACKGROUND:

The Loan Program Advisory Committee was established by the Oregon Cascades West
Council of Governments to advise the Cascades West COG staff and COG Board on
matters relating to the development and operations of the Small Business Lending
Program (Cascades West Business Lending — CWBL).

The Loan Program Advisory Committee is requesting the appointment of Sarah
Buddingh, as the community and economic development member seat on the
committee. This seat was left vacant after the departure of the Kelly Hart, from

Lebanon. Sarah Buddingh will serve in the community and economic development seat
and bring a strong knowledge of economic development and community impact as an
economic development practitioner serving in our Cascades West Region. Sarah comes
to us as an Economic Development Practitioner in Lincoln County but works with our
Cascades West COG region. She currently serves as the project manager for the

Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County (EDALC).

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
13



To: OCWCOG Board of Directors
From: Jan Kaplan, Mayor of Newport

Subject: Proposal for Regional response to ICE actions
Date: 12/2/25

The City of Newport is charged with the responsibility of protecting and ensuring the best
interests for the City, its residents, businesses, and visitors. Currently, three issues are
hanging in the balance that can have immeasurable impacts on Newport and the region:
e the potential of an ICE facility at Newport Municipal Airport,
e the permanent return of the US Coast Guard rescue helicopter to Newport,
e Confirmed reports that ICE is attempting to rent/lease 200 hotel rooms for
up to a year for operations that could begin on Dec. 15, 2025
To assist us with these complexissues, the City has hired outside legal counsel.

All of our City’s elected officials, including myself, Mayor Jan Kaplan, recognize that the
potential placement of ICE facilities and agents in Newport could have substantial adverse
regional impacts, both along the coast and into the valley. We are also aware of attempts
to rent hotel rooms in other cities along the coast.

1. lamrequesting the Cascades West Council of Governments to act as a regional
partner and convener on this issue, if participating agencies agree. Tothatend | am
proposing that we develop an MOU or other formal agreements for local
governments to sign on to.

2. The legal costs of this issue could be substantial. As such, | am also requesting the

COG to consider serving as a fiscal sponsor to be able to procure donations to help
cities and counties legally defend themselves against this issue.

14



DRAFT

Subject: Local Response to Federal Immigration Enforcement & Potential ICE Facilities on the
Oregon Coast

Why This Matters Now

Federal immigration agencies (including ICE) have increased enforcement activity in Oregon
and are exploring possible facilities and staging areas along the coast.

For our community, this has three main implications:

1. Community safety & trust — Immigrant and mixed-status families may be afraid to
access services or report crimes.

2. Local workforce — Fishing, processing, hospitality, and tourism businesses rely heavily
on immigrant workers.

3. Tourism & visitor confidence — Visible raids, detention facilities, and negative media
coverage can make visitors feel the Oregon coast is unsafe or unwelcoming, hurting small
businesses and local tax revenues.

Our local response aims to protect both people and place.

Sample Local Approach
1. Non-participation in civil immigration detention

e The city/county will not enter contracts or leases that turn our jails, airports, ports, or
public lands into civil immigration detention or long-term holding facilities, except
where clearly required by law and only after public notice and a vote.

o We will avoid “back-door” arrangements that effectively make local facilities de facto
detention or mass staging sites.

2. Transparency and early warning

e Any federal or contractor inquiry about using local public property for detention or
enforcement staging must be:
o Reported promptly to the city/county manager/administrator and attorney.
o Logged and summarized on a public webpage, to the extent allowed by law.
e Neighboring coastal jurisdictions, port districts, tribal governments, and tourism
partners (chambers, DMOs, lodging associations) will be notified of proposals with
regional or visitor impacts.

3. Support for residents, visitors, and peaceful protest

15



e Maintain a public information page with:

o

@)
@)
@)

“Know your rights” resources.

Basic information on Oregon’s sanctuary laws and our local policies.
Updates on significant enforcement/facility developments.

Clear reassurance that the Oregon coast is safe, welcoming, and open for
visitors.

o Affirm the right to peaceful protest and direct departments to support safe assembly and
de-escalation, without local participation in federal immigration enforcement.

4. Rapid response plan

e Create a Rapid Response Team (RRT) led by the manager/administrator, including law
enforcement, legal, communications, emergency management, port/airport (if
applicable), tourism/economic development, and community engagement.

o The plan activates when there is:

O O O

O

A verified raid or major enforcement action;

A facility/contractor proposal;

A legal demand implicating sanctuary laws; or

Clear signs of tourism impacts (media narratives, cancellations, visitor concern).

e Within the first 24 hours the RRT will:

O O O O

Verify facts;

Ensure local agencies are not exceeding what the law requires;

Issue a short, factual public statement with resident and visitor information;
Brief council/board, tribal, business, and regional partners.

5. Ongoing reporting and coordination

o Departments update policies to align with Oregon law and this framework.

e Regular public reports summarize contacts with federal agencies, facility proposals, and
any observed impacts on community trust and the visitor economy.

e Continued collaboration with tribal governments, business and tourism partners, and
community organizations to share information and coordinate non-enforcement support
for affected residents and workers.

16



To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Senior, Disability, and Community Services Programs
Board of Director Updates

December 4, 2025

Employer Resource Connection Good News Stories

The Employer Resource Connection (ERC) Program provides training, support, and resources
to help Medicaid consumer-employers develop successful working relationships with their
homecare workers (HCWs). ERC consultants support in-home consumers by providing
guidance, tips, and coaching to manage their employer-related responsibilities.

OCWCOG’s ERC consultants, Jennifer and Sharon, shared these stories about the work they
do and the impact this program can have on the lives of the people we serve.

“I recently worked with a consumer looking for a homecare worker. When we initially met, the
consumer shared that he was unable to read or write, so he was hesitant to reach out to
potential workers. We discussed having me screen workers for him and set up interviews for
us to complete together to find a good match. This consumer lives in Albany and has had a bit
of a difficult time lately. Almost every day, he likes to go to CHANCE for breakfast, visit friends
and staff and attend a weekly literacy class through them. We scheduled two interviews with
potential homecare workers; the consumer really liked the first worker, but they could not start
until after the first of the year. The second worker couldn’t have been a better good match for
this consumer. She told the consumer that she has been sober for two and a half years, spent
a lot of her time at CHANCE during recovery and was familiar with all that they offer for our
community. Not only did they have a great deal in common, but they also seemed to genuinely
hit it off and like each other. The homecare worker will be start working with the consumer next
week”.

“I recently worked with a daughter whose mother was in a nursing facility, but they wanted to
bring her home on hospice to be with family. The consumer had 60 hours of in-home care a
week and the family was completely lost and overwhelmed but they knew they really wanted
to bring her home. | had an initial ERC visit with the family and from there placed an ad and
assisted with setting up and being present for interviews. The consumer's daughter stated
she felt so much more comfortable with ERC assistance in helping her to set up care for her
mom to come home for her end-of-life stage”.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
17



Meals on Wheels

The program continues to stay deeply engaged with the community and focused on long-term
sustainability. Recently, we received a generous $290,000 bequest from the estate of a local
community member who intentionally included our program in her end-of-life planning. This
rare and meaningful gift reflects extraordinary dedication and has a profound impact on our
ability to serve the region.

MOW has also revitalized the Meals on Wheels Advisory Committee (MOWAC) as a
subgroup of the existing SSAC and DSAC. We look forward to engaging ambassadors
across the region who will help advance the Meals on Wheels mission and strengthen
community support for the program.

Lastly, we recently launched our fall campaign letter, inviting one-time or recurring monthly
contributions to help rebuild a strong foundation of committed donors. Within just five days of
mailing the letters, we reached our return-on-investment threshold and continue to see
generous contributions come in. We are deeply grateful for a community that recognizes the
vital importance of nourishing older adults and people with disabilities, and that expresses
this understanding through abundant financial support.

Our recent outreach for volunteers for meal delivery has also yielded unexpected generosity.
While tabling outside local grocery stores to recruit volunteers, we received nearly $500 in
donations at each location within only a few hours. Though fundraising was not the primary
goal, the community’s spontaneous support continues to inspire our team and reinforces the
shared commitment to caring for one another.

Emergency Preparedness Training

Senior and Disability Services provided a free Emergency Preparedness Training at the Linn
County Expo Center on November 17. The event featured expert presentations, hands-on
tabletop exercises, practical tools, and participant giveaways; all designed to help strengthen
our ability to protect and support those who rely on our services.

(If available, adding the number of registered attendees and participants would enhance this
section.)

Adult Protective Services Supports Mandatory Reporter Training

Adult Protective Services (APS) partnered with agency leadership to reinforce expectations
related to Mandatory Reporter obligations. APS supported both efforts to establish an
ongoing cadence for annual compliance training and offered series all staff and leadership
trainings to bring everyone current with Mandatory Reporter training.

Following this focused training effort, APS Screeners recorded 543 potential abuse
complaints in October, representing over a 25% increase from the previous month and
marking the highest monthly total received.

Delayed SNAP Benefit Issuance

Due to the recent federal shutdown, Oregonians experienced delays in their regularly
scheduled Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits. In Oregon, 1 in 6
residents rely on SNAP to help meet their nutritional needs.

Eligible Oregonians received their delayed benefits on November 7, during a short window
between court rulings. SNAP issuance fully returned to normal operations on November 13,

18



following the end of the federal shutdown. December benefits will be issued on their regular
schedule.

Honoring Steve Uerlings’ Service to Oregon Cascades West Senior Services
Foundation (OCWSSF) Board

OCWCOG staff and OCWSSF’s board acknowledged Chair Steve Uerlings and his 10 years
of dedicated board service during the November 2025 meeting. The OCWSSF, a sister
foundation to OCWCOG, supplements public funding for services to older adults in Linn,
Benton, and Lincoln Counties and is a key resource development partner for critical programs
like Meals on Wheels or SHIBA. Steve’s plaque read: “Your leadership, commitment, and
passion have made a lasting impact on our local seniors and community. With heartfelt
appreciation, we honor your decade of extraordinary contribution.” With Steve’s retirement
comes a vacancy for a new Chair. Are you interested in serving on the board, or know of
someone who is passionate about advocating for seniors? Contact Vickie Staffelbach at
vstaffelbach@ocwcog.org to learn more.

Council of
Governments

Program Highlights

Money Management Program (MMP)

The MMP service can support consumers who don't have the capacity to manage their own
federal benefits such as Social Security and Veterans benefits by becoming the payee for the
consumer's federal benefits and staff are appointed by Social Security to manage day-to-day
financial tasks. The much needed program has had several hiccups over the last few years,
but due to a newly developed strong working relationship with the local Social Security office,
the Money Management Program has been able create a more streamlined application process
for new Rep Payee clients. As a result, we have been able to successfully be appointed as
representative payee for 13 new consumers since September 2025.

Aging and Disability Resource Connection
During the month of October, our ADRC completed1,094 calls with the community and started
388 of intake referrals for services.

19


mailto:vstaffelbach@ocwcog.org

Community Outreach Presentations

Staff from our Aging and Disability Resource Connection (ADRC) delivered two community
presentations during the month of November. The first presentation was provided to several
nursing staff members that work for the Corvallis Clinic system. Attendees reported that the
information was very helpful and indicated they plan to share ADRC materials with the
individuals they support. The second presentation was delivered to a group of Volunteer Long-
Term Care Ombudsmen who meet monthly at The Grace Center. The group requested a
deeper understanding of the ADRC and the processes that occur once a referral is made to
the ADRC. Participants shared that they found the information highly informative and that the
session significantly enhanced their understanding.

Tabling Events
During the months of October and November, our ADRC and Older American Act Case
Management unit staffed several resource events in the community
¢ Mennonite Village Wellness Fair in Albany
e Chinook Winds Senior Fair in Lincoln City
e Medicare Rodeo & More Resource Fair in Turner, which was marketed to and
attended by individuals who reside in rural areas of Linn County, including Stayton,
Scio, Lyons, Mill City, Gates, and Detroit areas
e End-of-Life Resource Fair in Corvallis
e North End Senior Solutions Family Caregiver Event in Gleneden

New Grant for Community Service Programs

OCWCOG’s Community Services Programs Department was awarded a $15,000 New Partner
grant October 1, 2025 from IHN-CCO to support its Stand By Me-OR Program ($BM).
OCWCOG offers this free financial coaching program to low to moderate income families. $BM
meets clients where they are in their financial journey, providing coaching around spending
plans, credit, savings, and debt. The Program specializes in clients 18-35, women, and Latinx.
The IHN-CCO project creates a NEW curriculum focused on older adults ages 65+ and "just in
time decision making"; that is, downsizing a home, drawing social security early, adjusting to
the loss of a spouse; or, how to re-enter the job market/obtain work credits. This grant supports
operational costs for writing and printing the curriculum, as well as a translation to Spanish.

A few notes of interest:

e This project idea stemmed from noticing a lack of health equity around financial
wellness coaching, particularly for older homebound seniors living in Linn, Benton, and
Lincoln Counties.

e As an Area Agency on Aging, Cascades West often receives calls from seniors, many
times widowed females, who don’t meet eligibility requirements for the OR Money
Management Program Rep Payee program, are over-income for Legal Aid supports,
or too young for Senior Companions bill pay support and friendship. These clients
aren't looking for typical $BM coaching requests (e.g. introduction to credit card
use/how to buy your first car, online impulse buys and subscription tracking,
compound interest do's and don'ts/student debt/etc.). Instead, these clients are
typically looking for advice on "Just in Time Decision Making":
https://www.aging.senate.gov/hearings/postponed-financial-literacy-addressing-the-
unigue-just-in-time-decisions-older-americans-and-people-with-disabilities-face.

20


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.aging.senate.gov%2Fhearings%2Fpostponed-financial-literacy-addressing-the-unique-just-in-time-decisions-older-americans-and-people-with-disabilities-face&data=05%7C02%7CRMoore%40ocwcog.org%7Cc600b14cd23e4cc4b59b08de26d85b33%7Ccf8f0babb5d547ad9a0339ec05c04fbc%7C1%7C0%7C638990907852896829%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GqmD4DnEy8fYYDCJhO0jY724fiUuqyGACPv8WDWoVdk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.aging.senate.gov%2Fhearings%2Fpostponed-financial-literacy-addressing-the-unique-just-in-time-decisions-older-americans-and-people-with-disabilities-face&data=05%7C02%7CRMoore%40ocwcog.org%7Cc600b14cd23e4cc4b59b08de26d85b33%7Ccf8f0babb5d547ad9a0339ec05c04fbc%7C1%7C0%7C638990907852896829%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GqmD4DnEy8fYYDCJhO0jY724fiUuqyGACPv8WDWoVdk%3D&reserved=0

e Senior clients also typically prefer to meet in person, and not online, which is our
typical Stand By Me coaching appointment.

¢ Inresponse to reducing these equity barriers, and in the spirit of addressing the digital
divide, this pilot project seeks to create a new iteration of our Coaching Program and
create a NEW curriculum centered around older adults 1) coming into our Cascade
West offices or 2) having a home visit.

o Next steps include grant-writing for a full-time seniors-focused coach for the Stand By
Me OR Program. Do you know of a funder that would like to support this endeavor?
Reach out to Alicia Lucke at alucke@ocwcog.org or call 541-924-8440.

Benton County Veterans Services

OCWCOG's Lead Veteran Service Officer, Mark Lapinskas, reads the Veteran's Day
Proclamation at Benton County's 2025 Veterans Breakfast Reception and Board of
Commissioners Meeting.

21


mailto:alucke@ocwcog.org
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis
https://kval.com/features/events/benton-county-to-honor-veterans-with-ceremony-and-awards-on-nov-10-in-corvallis

To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Community and Economic Development
OCWCOG Board Updates

December 04, 2025

Introduction to the Community and Economic Development (CED) Department:

CED is a diverse department with a wide range of programs, projects, and goals. Currently
the CED department has 34 regular staff and 2 interim staff. Recently our department has
seen a few different transitions. Jesus Jara has accepted the position of Ride Line Manager.
The Ride Line program welcomed Cassandra Atlas back as well as promoted Andres Ojeda.
Both will serve as supervisors for Ride Line. Other new appointments in the CED Department
include Brittany Sosa as the Mileage Reimbursement Specialist, and Katyna Pliler as a
Transportation Brokerage Specialist. CED Planning also onboarded Justin Epiaka, an
associate planner. CED’s primary focus areas cover: Cascades West Business Lending,
Cascades West Ride Line, Transportation Planning, GIS Services, Community/ Economic

Development Planning, and Grant Writing.

Cascades West Business Lending:

o The SBA 504 loan to the veterinarian in Corvallis was lost due to the government
shutdown. The borrower was nervous about how long it would be until reopen and the
banker determined they could provide the entire loan if the borrower paid a 20% down
payment rather that 10% with SBA 504. Two other 504 loan in process and well as two

“‘local loan” prospects in early stages.

Cascades West Ride Line:
e Quarter 3 Highlights
o Ride Line was subcontracted with 23 Transportation Provider Companies
= 131 Active Vehicles
= 190 Certified Drivers

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
22



o Total number of Calls Received 26,832

o Total Trips Requested 72,338
= 12,334 were Mileage Reimbursement
= 9,365 were Wheelchair Transport

o Total Trips Completed in 52,761
= 10,0911 were Mileage Reimbursement

= 6,899 were Wheelchair Transports

Transportation Planning:

The CED department kicked off the Innovative Mobility Hub grant. The work will start
with an inventory of regional projects including placemaking, traffic calming, and other
smaller scale quick build projects. We want to create a regional tool kit to show what is
possible for communities to implement.

The Metropolitan Planning Areas (AAMPO and CAMPO) kicked of the Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP). This work will take the majority of 2026 and include several

public meetings and outreach events.

Community and Economic Development Planning:

The Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) Board of Directors
adopted the 2025-2030 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS).
The plan is available HERE.

Staff continued discussions about amending the membership structure to better
represent the economic interests of the region.

Staff continued working on a regional marketing video to highlight the CEDS and 4-
County EDD region.

Staff continue to staff the Cascades West Regional Consortium (CWRC). The group
was not awarded a DLCD grant for Phase Il of the Business Plan for a regional
wetland bank. The group will be discussing another DLCD wetland TA grant that could
support projects related to housing development.

Staff are supporting the City of Lebanon with land use planning services.

23


https://www.ocwcog.org/economic-development/cascades-west-economic-development-district/

« Staff will be working with City of Philomath to update their development code to reflect
current legislation-required updates. This work will be funded through a DLCD
Technical Assistance grant that planning staff pursued for this purpose.

« Staff recently initiated the process of working with City of Toledo to update their Parks
Master Plan. The primary effort behind this project is being led by our recently hired

Associate Planner, Justin Epiaka.

Grants Services and Support

Circumstances surrounding the Federal funding programs pause, employee furloughs, and its
shutdown, as well as State agency grant cycles have shortened grant application timelines and
subsequently impacted projects, eligibility, and awards. These grant programs will continue to
be oversubscribed and highly competitive with smaller awards and be geographically awarded
across the State.

We are also waiting for an executed contract from Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) grant program to begin developing a regional safety
action plan for member jurisdictions: cities of Albany, Lebanon, Millersburg, Sweet Home, and
Tangent, and Linn County. The purpose of the Safety Action plan is to reduce road fatalities
and injuries. The City of Tangent is the fiscal agent and the OCWCOG CED will manage the
project. We resubmitted an SS4A proposal for Lincoln County jurisdictions: Depoe Bay, Lincoln
City, Newport, the Siletz Tribe, Toledo, Waldport, and Yachats.

The OCWCOG CED grant service successfully secured two Oregon Parks grants for the City
of Tangent. The First grant will fund the design and construction of a new covered pavilion at
Bass Estate Community Park. The other grant will be used to update the City’s Master Park
Plan. In both cases, the OCWCOG CED department will provide project management and
planning services.

In August, we submitted a proposal on behalf of the Cascades Regional Consortium (CWRC)
to develop wetland mitigation bank strategic and business plan. That proposal aimed to reduce
wetland barriers and build upon a 2023 Wetland Mitigation Feasibility Study for Linn and Benton
County jurisdictions. Unfortunately, that proposal was not funded. We continue to look for other
funding to move the regional mitigation bank to next level.

24



2025 Year to Date Grant Activity
OCWCOG CED grant staff provided some degree of project scoping, scaling, writing,
and support for the following applications.

Grant Match (Cash Total Project
Type Applicant Request and/or In-Kind) Cost Status
Business Development
CWIHub/SBA Growth Accelerator Prize  OCWCOG S 75,000 S - S 75,000 Not Funded
CWBL Marketing Outreach and
Rebrand/EDA FY25 Disaster OCWCOG S 216,290 S 75,576 S 291,866 Not Funded
Supplemental
TA for Underrepresented Businesses/Biz OCWCOG for $ 195368 $ 49429 244,797 Not Funded
OR CWEDD
Subtotal S 486,658 S 125,005 $ 611,663
Housing and Land Use
Villages at Cascades Head Connector
Lincoln Cit 250,000 - 250,000 Pendin
Road/USDOT Rural and Tribal Asst yoe 2 ? &
Champion Mill Redevelopment/HISF Lebanon S 100,000 S - S 100,000 Funded
Development Codes Update/DLCD  Philomath S 60,000 $ - S 60,000 Funded
Toledo - DLCD SDC update Toledo S 60,000 S - S 60,000 Not Funded
Llnn—Benton‘Wetlands.Mltlgatlon Bank OCWCOG for $ 160,000 S s 160,000 Not Funded
Strategic and Business Plan/DLCD CWRC
Updated and Unified Master Park: d
pdated and Ymitied Master rarks and — cpanon  $ 60,000 $ 35,000 $ 95,000  Pending
Trails Plan/DLCD Gen. TA
Subtotal $ 690,000 S 35,000 $ 725,000
Infrastructure
Toledo - ODF P rty Infrastruct
oledo - ODF Property Infrastructure - ro1 045 ¢ 50,000 § - s 50,000  Pending
Analysis/HISF
Update Water Master Plan/OHA SIPP Sodaville S 50,000 S - S 50,000 Funded
Subtotal $ 100,000 $ - S 100,000
Parks and Recreation
Di
Schooner Creek Discovery Park Phase .\ | v ¢ 500,000 $ 5,000,000 $ 5,500,000 Not Funded
111/CIP Rep Val Hoyle
Bass Estate Community Park
. Tangent S 100,000 $ 40,000 $ 140,000 Funded
Pavilion/Oregon Parks Small Grant
M Parks PI Park:
aster Parks Plan Update/Oregon Parks o o ¢ 35000 ¢ 8,000 $ 40,000  Funded
Planning Grant
Subtotal $ 632,000 $ 5,048,000 $ 5,680,000
Transportation
Lincol Multijurisdicti | Saf
incoln County Multijurisdictional Safety o \yene ¢ 387383 ¢ 99,360 $ 496,743  Pending
Action Plan/FHWA, SS4A
Innovative Mobility Program/ ODOT ~ OCWCOG S 90,000 $ 10,000 S 100,000 Funded
Subtotal $ 387,383 S 99,360 $ 496,743

25



To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
Governments services to meet individual and community needs.

Technology Services
Board Updates

December 4, 2025

COG Intranet Site
The COG Intranet site has been launched. This is a great resource for staff to access and
share internal information across the agency.

City of Monroe

The City of Monroe has joined the COG to receive tech support services as a member
agency. We look forward to working with the City Administrator, Thomas J. Fiorelli to support
and help modernize their systems.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391
Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org

26



To promote a thriving region through service,

VISION .. . .
connectivity, and innovation.

OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive

MIsSSTON services to meet individual and community needs.

Office of Human Resources
Board of Directors Memo

December 4, 2025

Staffing Updates:
¢ Reina Avila has been promoted into the HR Manager role following Jesus Jara’s
departure.
¢ Nick Andrews has been formally moved into HR, in support of Organizational
Development work led by Vanessa Rusch.

o We are in the interview process for an HR Generalist 2

Program Outcomes:
e Employee Engagement Survey data has been shared at the SLT level with plans for
sharing data to all staff, we have seen improvements overall in response rate and key
measures. Areas of focus remain the same with an emphasis on supervisors meeting

with staff to discuss performance and development goals.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9" Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391
Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 Www.ocwcog.org

27



To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Transportation Brokerage Advisory Committee
Subcommittee Updates for the COG Board

December 04, 2025

Committee Updates:

The Transportation Brokerage Advisory Committee (TBAC) held their last meeting on
Thursday, October 16, 2025. During this meeting staff introduced a new meeting structure
with standing agenda items and new reports that will continue to be on TBAC agendas
moving forward. Additionally, as there were new Ride Line leadership changes, introductions
were made by staff and members in attendance.

Staff were able to share reports with the group regarding new client growth, TNC Contracts
and Grievances Analysis. Programmatic reports were also shared covering the following:
Utilization Report — since QRyde Implementation

Trip Medical Reasoning — since QRyde implementation

Quality Assurance Report — call center metrics for the last 2 quarters

Performance Reports

Ride Line Heat Map

The committee also entertained an agenda item brought to them by Quality Medical
Transportation’s Owner/Operator Tima O’Malley. Quality Medical is one of the Ride Line
vendors. O’Malley’s agenda topic discussed the following topics with RL Leadership and the
other TBAC members present:

Scheduling drop times

Planning one week in advance and working together to reconcile a solution
Reconsidering the current meeting frequency for TBAC

Proposal to consider holding meetings every other month

Alternative proposal for if meeting schedule stays the same, reschedule a cancelled
meeting to occur sooner, rather than just cancel.

TBAC Staff also provided a presentation for new and returning members for roles and
expectations for being on the committee.

TBAC staff are continuing to work on recruiting more members for the TBAC as well as filling
two current vacancies to their current membership roster. If there is interest in joining the
TBAC, please reach out to amuzechenko@ocwcog.org, to see what our membership
requirements are.

Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
28


mailto:amuzechenko@ocwcog.org

Upcoming Meetings:

The TBAC meets quarterly, with the next meeting being Thursday, January 15, 2026.
Meetings are held every three months on the third Thursday of the month, from 11:00 am to
12:30 pm. Members of the public and interested parties are welcome to attend any TBAC
meetings. Meeting information and agenda packets are available on the TBAC website at the
following link: Transportation Brokerage Advisory Committee | OCWCOG.

29


https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/cascades-west-ride-line/tbac/

To promote a thriving region through service,

adi

VISION o . !
connectivity, and innovation.
Council of MISSION We are a regional leader and partner providing inclusive
overnments services to meet individual and community needs.
G t i t t individual and it d

Cascades West Economic Development District
Subcommittee Updates to the COG Board

December 04, 2025

September CWEDD Meeting Summary:

At the September CWEDD Board Meeting, held at Benton County Kalapuya Building,
members discussed approval of the 2025-230 CEDS, which includes the public comment
memo. Additionally, members discussed a CEDS Marketing Video Proposal and future
membership updates.

Staff Justin Peterson gave a presentation on the progress of the Linn Benton EPA
Brownfields Coalition Grant (Linn Benton Brownfields Coalition | OCWCOG). After the
presentation the floor was opened to members and the public for discussion on this topic.

Members received updates from the CEDS working groups such as the Innovation Hubs,
Broadband Action Team (BAT), The Cascades West Regional Consortium (CWRC), Early
Childhood Education, Rural Economic Alliance (REAL), Lane Economic Committee (LEC),
and a Blue Economy update from the Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County
(EDALC).

During the Other Business Section, the board discussed the Mass Timber Webinar and other
regionally significant updates. The group also provided a few topics for the upcoming
December meeting.

The next regularly scheduled CWEDD Board Meeting is set for Thursday, December 11,
2025, at 9:00am. This meeting will be hybrid, and the in-person location will be at the Albany
Cascades West Council of Governments. Members of the public and interested parties are
welcome and encouraged to attend any CWEDD Board meetings either in person or virtually
via Microsoft Teams. Meeting information and agenda packets are available on the CWEDD
website here: Cascades West Economic Development District | OCWCOG.

Project and Task Updates:

e The 2025 priority project for CWEDD was the 2025-2030 Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy (CEDS). The CEDS was approved during the September Board

meeting!
Albany Office & Administration Corvallis Office Toledo Office
1400 Queen Avenue, Suite 201 1121 NW 9t Street 203 North Main Street
Albany, OR 97322 Corvallis, OR 97330 Toledo, OR 97391

Phone 541.967.8630 Fax 541-967-6123 www.ocwcog.org
30


https://www.ocwcog.org/community-development/planning-and-interjurisdictional-collaboration-2/
https://www.ocwcog.org/economic-development/cascades-west-economic-development-district/

e A new project that is currently in the works is the CWEDD Regional Marketing video,
stay tuned for more updates on this project at the December 11" CWEDD Board
meeting.

31



	01 Cover Sheet for BOD Meeting
	02 BOD Agenda 12.04.2025
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA
	An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.


	03 Draft BOD meeting notes 10.23.25
	OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES
	An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to ORS 192.660.


	03a YTD FY 2026 October 2025
	YTD Actuals v Budget by Qu
	YTD Actuals v Budget by Qu_001

	2026 Full Board Schedule
	Sheet1

	06 25-12-04 Member Appointment Memo_S.Buddingh
	09a BOARD REPORT 11-2025
	09b 25-12-04 CED Program Updates
	09c Technology Services BOD 12.5.25
	09d HR Board Memo.CBA.10.25
	10a 25-12-04 Subcomittee Updates to the COG Board_TBAC
	10b 25-12-04 Subcommittee Updates_CWEDD
	ADP63DF.tmp
	Why This Matters Now
	Sample Local Approach




